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EQUITY and LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Section 1 Non-Discrimination

A. Policy of Non-Discrimination

The policy of ESU 17 is to not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender,
marital status, disability, religion or age in admission, access, or treatment with regard to its
programs and activities or with regard to employment.

ESU 17 and its staff shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws prohibiting
discrimination. The Board of ESU 17 intends to take any necessary measures to assure
compliance with such laws and directs its staff to take all actions necessary to meet this
objective.

Decisions with regard to employment, discharge, compensation, and terms and conditions of
employment shall not be made based on race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, disability,
or national origin or other protected status. There shall be no discrimination against an applicant
or employee because of membership or activity in an employee organization or because of
protected free speech activities.

Legal Reference: Title VI--34 CFR §100 et seq.

Title VII--42 U.S.C. §2000e, et seq.

Title IX--20 U.S.C §1681; 34 CFR 106.1 et seq.

ADEA--29 U.S.C. §621 et seq.

ADA-42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 28 CFR §35.101 et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504--29 U.S.C. §791, et seq.; 34 CFR
§104, et seq.

Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act; §§48-1101 to 48-1126

§ 20-168

§ 48-824 (unfair labor practices)

§§ 79-2,116 to 79-2,124 (Nebraska Equal Opportunity in Education Act)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010
Section 2 Anti-Discrimination and Grievance Procedure
A. Coordinator

The Administrator is designated as the Coordinator for the ESU’s compliance with anti-
discrimination laws, including Title VI, Title IX; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(ADA), and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504). Complaints or
concerns involving discrimination should be addressed to the Coordinator.

B. Preventing Harassment and Discrimination

ESU 17 is committed to offering employment and educational opportunity to its employees and
to students served by the ESU based on ability and performance, in a climate free of
discrimination.
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Accordingly, unlawful discrimination or harassment of any kind by ESU employees and students
in ESU programs is prohibited. In addition, ESU 17 will endeavor to protect employees and
students from reported discrimination or harassment by non-employees or others in the work
place and educational environment.

For purposes of this policy, discrimination or harassment based on a person’s race, color,
national origin, gender, marital status, disability, religion or age is prohibited. The following are
general definitions of what might constitute prohibited harassment:

1.

In general, verbal or physical conduct relating to a person’s protected status
constitutes harassment when the conduct unreasonably interferes with the
person’s work performance or creates an intimidating work, instructional or
educational environment.

Age harassment has been defined by federal regulations as a form of age
discrimination. It can consist of demeaning jokes, insults or intimidation based on
a person’s age.

Sexual harassment has been defined by federal and state regulations as a form of
sex discrimination. It can consist of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for
sexual favors, or physical or verbal conduct of a sexual nature by supervisors or
others in the work place, classroom or educational environment. Sexual
harassment may exist when:

a. Supervisors or managers make submission to such conduct either an
explicit or implicit term and condition of employment (including hiring,
compensation, promotion, or retention);

b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used by supervisors or
managers as a basis for employment related decisions such as promotion,
performance evaluation, pay adjustment, discipline, work assignment, etc.

c. The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual’s work or educational performance or creating an intimidating,
hostile, or offensive working, class room or educational environment.

Sexual harassment may include explicit sexual propositions, sexual innuendo, suggestive

comments, sexually oriented “kidding” or “teasing,
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practical jokes,” jokes about

gender-specific traits, foul or obscene language or gestures, displays of foul or obscene
printed or visual material, and physical contact, such as patting, pinching or brushing
against another’s body.

C. Grievance Procedures

Article 5

Employees or students should initially report all instances of discrimination or
harassment to their immediate supervisor or teacher. However, if the employee or
student is uncomfortable in presenting the problem to the supervisor or teacher, or
if the supervisor or teacher is the problem, the employee or student is encouraged
to go to the next level of supervision.

If the employee or student’s complaint is not resolved to his or her satisfaction
within five to ten working days, or if the discrimination or harassment continues,
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please report your complaint to the Administrator of ESU 17. If a satisfactory
arrangement cannot be obtained through the Administrator, the complaint may be
processed to the Board of ESU 17.

3. The supervisor, teacher or the Administrator will thoroughly investigate all
complaints. These situations will be treated with the utmost confidence,
consistent with resolution of the problem. Based on the results of the
investigation, appropriate corrective action, up to and including discharge of
offending employees or removal of offending students may be taken.

4. The person who makes the complaint shall not be threatened or retaliated against
for alleging a violation of this anti-discrimination policy or for use of this
grievance procedure.

Legal Reference: Title VI--34 CFR §100 et seq.

Title VII--42 U.S.C. §2000e, et seq.

Title IX--20 U.S.C §1681; 34 CFR 106.1 et seq.

ADEA--29 U.S.C. §621 et seq.

ADA-42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 28 CFR §35.101 et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504--29 U.S.C. §791, et seq.; 34 CFR

§104, et seq.
Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§48-1101 to 48-
1126
Neb. Rev. Stat §20-168
Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010
Section 3 Section 504 Compliance

A. Purpose (34 CFR 104.3)

The purpose of this policy is to effectuate Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which is
designed to eliminate discrimination on the basis of handicap in any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance. Compliance with this policy will also effectuate
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

B. Definitions (34 CFR 104.3)
“Handicapped persons” means any person who (1) has a physical or mental impairment which
substantially limits one or more major life activities, (2) has a record of such an impairment, or

(3) is regarded as having such an impairment.

“Major life activities” means functions such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks,
walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, and working.

Qualified handicapped person means:
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With respect to employment, a handicapped person who, with reasonable
accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job in question.

With respect to educational services, a handicapped person (a) of an age during which
nonhandicapped persons are provided such services, (b) of any age during which it is
mandatory under state law to provide such services to handicapped persons, or (c) to
whom a free appropriate public education is required to be provided.

With respect to other services, a handicapped person who meets the essential eligibility
requirements for the receipt of such services.

C. Discrimination Prohibited (34 CFR 104.4)

No qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicap, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity of the ESU.

D. Voluntary Action and Self-Evaluation (34 CFR 104.6)

Voluntary action. The ESU may take steps, in addition to any action that is required by this
policy, to overcome the effects of conditions that result in limited participation in the ESU's
program or activity by qualified handicapped persons.

Self-evaluation. The ESU shall: (a) evaluate, with the assistance of interested persons, including
handicapped persons or organizations representing handicapped persons, its current policies and
practices and the effects thereof that do not or may not meet the requirements of this policy; (b)
modify, after consultation with interested persons, including handicapped persons or
organizations representing handicapped persons, any policies and practices that do not meet the
requirements of this policy; and (c) take, after consultation with interested persons, including
handicapped persons or organizations representing handicapped persons, appropriate remedial
steps to eliminate the effects of any discrimination that resulted from adherence to these policies
and practices.

The ESU shall, for at least three years following completion of the evaluation, maintain on file,
make available for public inspection, and provide to the Assistant Secretary upon request: (i) a
list of the interested persons consulted, (ii) a description of areas examined and any problems
identified, and (iii) a description of any modifications made and of any remedial steps taken.

E. 504 Coordinator (34 CFR 104.7)

The ESU has designated the Administrator as its Section 504 Coordinator. The ESU has
designated the Director of Special Education as its Section 504 Coordinator for students. As
required by law, these persons shall coordinate the ESU’s efforts to comply with Federal Law.

F. 504 and ADA Complaint Procedures (34 CFR 104.7)
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The following grievance procedure shall be used to provide for the prompt and equitable
resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by this policy and for the resolution of
complaints of alleged violations of Section 504 or the ADA:

1. Complaints shall be filed with the ADA and Section 504 Coordinator.
Complaints shall be made in writing, unless the Complainant’s disability prevents
such, in which event the Complaint can be made verbally.

2. Complaints shall set forth: (a) the name of the Complainant, (b) the address and
telephone number or other such information sufficient to enable the Coordinator
to contact the Complainant, (c) a brief description of the alleged violation, and (d)
the relief requested by the Complainant.

3. Complaints shall be investigated by the Coordinator or the Coordinator's
designee. Investigations shall be thorough, but informal, and the Complainant
shall be given a full opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the complaint.

4. The Coordinator shall make a decision on the Complaint within thirty (30) days of
the filing of the Complaint, unless such time period is extended by agreement of
the Complainant. The decision shall be made in writing, shall set forth the
Coordinator's proposed resolution of the Complaint, and shall be forwarded to the
Complainant.

5. The Complainant shall have ten (10) days from the date the Coordinator's
decision is sent to the Complainant to accept or reject the Coordinator's proposed
resolution, and shall be deemed to have accepted the proposed resolution unless
the Complainant rejects the proposed resolution within such time period.

In the event the Complainant rejects the proposed resolution, the Complainant
shall be given the opportunity to file a request for reconsideration within ten (10)
days from the date the Coordinator’s decision is sent to the Complainant. The
request for reconsideration shall be filed with the Coordinator. The Coordinator
shall consider any additional information provided in the request for
reconsideration and make a decision on the request for reconsideration within 10
(ten) days after the request for reconsideration was filed.

G.  Notice (34 CFR 104.8)

The ESU shall take appropriate steps to notify participants, beneficiaries, applicants, and
employees, including those with impaired vision or hearing, that it does not discriminate on the
basis of handicap in violation of State or Federal law, including Section 504. The notification
shall state, where appropriate, that the ESU does not discriminate in admission or access to, or
treatment or employment in, its programs and activities.

The notification shall also include an identification of the responsible employee designated
above. Methods of initial and continuing notification may include the posting of notices,
publication in newspapers and magazines, placement of notices in ESUs’ publication, and
distribution of memoranda or other written communications.

If the ESU publishes or uses recruitment materials or publications containing general information
that it makes available to participants, beneficiaries, applicants, or employees, it shall include in
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those materials or publications a statement that the ESU does not discriminate on the basis of
handicap in violation of State or Federal law, including Section 504.

H.

Employment Practices Discrimination Practices Prohibited (34 CFR 104.8)

1. General.
No qualified handicapped person shall, on the basis of handicap, be subjected to
discrimination in employment under any program or activity to which this policy applies.

The ESU shall take positive steps to employ and advance in employment qualified
handicapped persons in programs that receive assistance under the special education
laws.

The ESU shall make all decisions concerning employment under any program or activity
to which this policy applies in a manner which ensures that discrimination on the basis of
handicap does not occur and may not limit, segregate, or classify applicants or employees
in any way that adversely affects their opportunities or status because of handicap.

The ESU will not participate in a contractual or other relationship that has the effect of
subjecting qualified handicapped applicants or employees to discrimination prohibited by
this policy.

2. Specific Activities.

The provisions of this policy apply to: (1) recruitment, advertising, and the processing of
applications for employment; (2) hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of tenure,
demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, right of return from layoff and rehiring; (3) rates
of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in compensation; (4) job
assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, lines of
progression, and seniority lists; (5) leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave; (6)
fringe benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not administered by the
ESU; (7) selection and financial support for training, including apprenticeship,
professional meetings, conferences, and other related activities, and selection for leaves
of absence to pursue training; (8) employer sponsored activities, including social or
recreational programs; and (9) any other term, condition, or privilege of employment.

3. Collective Bargaining Agreement Superceded.
The ESU’s obligation to comply with this policy is not affected by any inconsistent term
of any collective bargaining agreement to which it is a party.

4. Reasonable Accommodation (34 CFR 104.12)

The ESU shall make reasonable accommodation to the known physical or mental
limitations of an otherwise qualified handicapped applicant or employee unless the ESU
can demonstrate that the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the
operation of its program.
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Reasonable accommodation may include: (a) making facilities used by employees readily
accessible to and usable by handicapped persons, and (b) job restructuring, part-time or
modified work schedules, acquisition or modification of equipment or devices, the
provision of readers or interpreters, and other similar actions.

In determining whether an accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the
operation of the ESU’s program, factors to be considered include: (a) the overall size of
the ESU’s program with respect to number of employees, number and type of facilities,
and size of budget; (b) the type of the ESU’s operation, including the composition and
structure of the ESU’s workforce; and (c) the nature and cost of the accommodation
needed. The ESU may not deny any employment opportunity to a qualified handicapped
employee or applicant if the basis for the denial is the need to make reasonable
accommodation to the physical or mental limitations of the employee or applicant.

5. Employment Criteria (34 CFR 104.13)

The ESU will not make use of any employment test or other selection criterion that
screens out or tends to screen out handicapped persons or any class of handicapped
persons unless: (a) the test score or other selection criterion, as used by the ESU, is
shown to be job-related for the position in question, and (b) alternative job-related tests or
criteria that do not screen out or tend to screen out as many handicapped persons are not
available.

The ESU shall select and administer tests concerning employment so as best to ensure
that, when administered to an applicant or employee who has a handicap that impairs
sensory, manual, or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the applicant's or
employee’s job skills, aptitude, or whatever other factor the test purports to measure,
rather than reflecting the applicant's or employee’s impaired sensory, manual, or speaking
skills (except where those skills are the factors that the test purports to measure).

6. Pre-employment Inquiries (34 CFR 104.14)

Except as provided below, the ESU will not conduct a pre-employment medical
examination or make pre-employment inquiries of an applicant as to whether the
applicant is a handicapped person or as to the nature or severity of a handicap. The ESU
may, however, make pre-employment inquiry into an applicant’s ability to perform job-
related functions.

When the ESU is taking remedial action to correct the effects of past discrimination or
voluntary action to overcome the effects of conditions that resulted in limited
participation in its federally assisted program or activity, or when the ESU is taking
affirmative action, the ESU may invite applicants for employment to indicate whether
and to what extent they are handicapped. To take such action, the ESU must: (a) state
clearly on any written questionnaire used for this purpose, or make clear orally if no
written questionnaire is used, that the information requested is intended for use solely in
connection with its remedial action obligations or its voluntary or affirmative action
efforts; and (b) state clearly that the information is being requested on a voluntary basis,
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that it will be kept confidential, that refusal to provide it will not subject the applicant or
employee to any adverse treatment, and that it will be used only in accordance with this
policy.

Nothing in this section shall prohibit the ESU from conditioning an offer of employment
on the results of a medical examination conducted prior to the employee’s entrance on
duty, provided that: (a) all entering employees are subjected to such an examination
regardless of handicap, and (b) the results of such an examination are used only in
accordance with the requirements of this policy.

Information obtained in accordance with this section as to the medical condition or
history of the applicant shall be collected and maintained on separate forms that shall be
accorded confidentiality as medical records, except that: (a) supervisors and managers
may be informed regarding restrictions on the work or duties of handicapped persons and
regarding necessary accommodations; (b) first aid and safety personnel may be informed,
where appropriate, if the condition might require emergency treatment; and (c)
government officials investigating compliance with the Act shall be provided relevant
information upon request.

I. Program Accessibility

I. Discrimination Prohibited (34 CFR 104.21)

No qualified handicapped person shall, because the ESU’s facilities are
inaccessible to or unusable by handicapped persons, be denied the benefits of, be
excluded from participation in, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity to which this policy applies.

2. Existing Facilities (34 CFR 104.22)

Program accessibility. The ESU shall operate each program or activity to which
this policy applies so that the program or activity, when viewed in its entirety, is
readily accessible to handicapped persons. The ESU is not required to make each
of its existing facilities or every part of a facility accessible to and usable by
handicapped persons.

Methods. The ESU is not required to make structural changes in existing facilities
where other methods are effective in achieving compliance with program
accessibility. In choosing among available methods for meeting the requirement
of program accessibility, the ESU shall give priority to those methods that offer
programs and activities to handicapped persons in the most integrated setting
appropriate.
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Transition plan. In the event structural changes to facilities are necessary to meet
the requirement of program accessibility, the ESU shall develop a transition plan
setting forth the steps necessary to complete such changes. The plan shall be
developed with the assistance of interested persons, including handicapped
persons or organizations representing handicapped persons. A copy of the
transition plan shall be made available for public inspection. The plan shall, at a
minimum: (a) identify physical obstacles in the ESU's facilities that limit the
accessibility of its program or activity to handicapped persons; (b) describe in
detail the methods that will be used to make the facilities accessible; (c) specify
the schedule for taking the steps necessary to achieve full program accessibility
and, if the time period of the transition plan is longer than one year, identify the
steps that will be taken during each year of the transition period; and (d) indicate
the person responsible for implementation of the plan.

Notice. The ESU shall adopt and implement procedures to ensure that interested
persons, including persons with impaired vision or hearing, can obtain
information as to the existence and location of services, activities, and facilities
that are accessible to and usable by handicapped persons.

New Construction (34 CFR 104.23)

Each facility or part of a facility constructed by, on behalf of, or for the use of the
ESU shall be designed and constructed in such manner that the facility or part of
the facility is readily accessible to and usable by handicapped persons.

Each facility or part of a facility which is altered by, on behalf of, or for the use of
the ESU after the effective date of this policy in a manner that affects or could
affect the usability of the facility or part of the facility shall, to the maximum
extent feasible, be altered in such manner that the altered portion of the facility is
readily accessible to and usable by handicapped persons.

J. Program Accessibility to Students (34 CFR 104.32 to .38)

As and to the extent the services to a qualified handicapped student are the responsibility of the
ESU, the services are to:

1. be in conformance with the 504 Plan developed by the 504 team for the student
by the school in which the student is enrolled, and
2. afford handicapped students an equal opportunity for participation in programs
and services without discrimination on the basis of handicap.
Legal Reference: Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504--29 U.S.C. §791, et seq.; 34 CFR
§104, et seq.
ADA-42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 28 CFR §35.101 et seq.
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Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§48-1101 to 48-
1126

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 4

Special Education

The ESU will abide by all state and federal laws and regulations relating to special education.

1.

Free Appropriate Public Education: The Board affirms its position that students
with disabilities are entitled to a free appropriate public education in conformance
with Nebraska Department of Education Rule 51. As and to the extent the services
to a special education student are the responsibility of the ESU, the services are
to:

a. be in conformance with the student’s Individualized Education Plan (IEP)
or Individual Family Service Plan (IFSP),

b. meet the standards that apply to education provided by the school in which
the student is enrolled, and

c. provide the student with all of the rights of a child with a disability who is
served by the school in which the student is enrolled.

Student Records - Rights and Privacy: Student records are to be maintained in
conformance with the requirements of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act (FERPA) and NDE Rule 51. The Administrator or designee shall establish
procedures to protect the confidentiality of personally identifiable information at
collection, storage, disclosure and destruction stages.

Procedural Safeguards: The special education programs and services operated by
the ESU or provided to schools by contract shall comply with the procedural
safeguards specified in NDE Rule 51.

Plans and Budgets: Special education plans and budgets for schools served will
be available for public viewing.

Personnel: All personnel assigned to provide special education and related
services to children with disabilities are to be appropriately and adequately
prepared to provide special education. The Director of Special Education will
develop a comprehensive system of personnel development which shall include:

In-service training;

b. Procedures to assure that all personnel are properly endorsed and
adequately trained; and

c. Acquiring and disseminating best educational practices and materials
developed for the provision of the services.

| Legal Reference: | 20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq. 34 CFR Part 300 (Individuals with Disabilities
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Education Act and regulations);
§§ 79-1110 to 79-1178

92 NAC 51 (NDE Rule 51)

20 U.S.C. 1232g (FERPA)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 5 Homeless Students

A “homeless child” for purposes of this Policy is a child who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence, as defined by applicable federal and state law related to homeless students.

It is the ESU’s policy that homeless children not be stigmatized or segregated on the basis of
their status as homeless. Homeless children will be provided the same free appropriate public
education as other students served by the ESU. Homeless students will be provided services
comparable to services offered to other students served by the ESU for which the student
qualifies. The ESU will communicate with the Homeless Coordinator of the school in which any
homeless child is enrolled as needed to ensure compliance with this policy.

Legal Reference: Nebraska Department of Education Rule 19

42 USC §§11431, et seq. (McKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 6 Student Welfare

A. Child Abuse and Neglect

Any employee of ESU 17 who has reasonable cause to believe a child has been subjected to
abuse or neglect or is being subjected to conditions which would result in abuse or neglect shall
inform their immediate supervisor and the appropriate administrator of the school in which the
student is enrolled. For children below age five, the report shall also be made to the Director of
Special Education.

The immediate supervisor or the Director of Special Education, as applicable, shall make a report
or cause a report to be made of suspected abuse or neglect directly to local law enforcement or
the Department of Health and Human Services, Child Protection Services (CPS). If there is an
emergency, the report is to be made to local law enforcement immediately. To fulfill their
statutory duty, the employee shall also make the report or confirm that the report has been made
to local law enforcement or CPS.

Confidentiality of the person making the report shall be maintained to the extent practicable.
The Administrator or designee is to establish and implement procedures to ensure such
confidentiality.

The Administrator or designee shall provide employees information and in-services as
appropriate to ensure that employees fully understand their responsibility under the law and the
ESU’s procedures.

| Legal Reference: | § 28-711 |
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| Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

B. Corporal Punishment

Use of corporal punishment is prohibited by ESU 17. Corporal punishment for purposes of this
policy means the infliction of bodily pain as a penalty for disapproved behavior. This does not
include physical contact that is intended to preserve order in schools or to protect persons or
property from harm. Any physical force used with students shall be limited to that which is
reasonable in relation to the need for self-defense, the defense of others, the defense of one’s
property or the defense of another’s property.

Any employee who has been involved in an incident involving the use of physical force with a
student shall make an oral report of such circumstances to the Administrator or designee as soon
as is practicable and within twenty-four hours. The Administrator or designee shall prepare a
memorandum of such report and, as deemed appropriate, investigate and report the incident to
the appropriate administrator of the school in which the student is enrolled. A child abuse or
neglect report shall be made in the event such is warranted.

The Administrator or designee shall provide employees information and in-services as
appropriate to ensure that employees fully understand their responsibility to not use corporal
punishment and the ESU’s procedures.

Legal Reference: § 79-295
NDE Rule 27.002.09 and 27.004.03G

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

C. Use of Specific Behavior Modification Strategies

Behavior modification includes reinforcement techniques commonly employed by educators, as
well as specific techniques used for students such as timeout rooms, physical restraints, aversive
and non-aversive techniques, etc.

Use of some specific behavior modification strategies can be misunderstood to be intended as
punishment rather than as proper behavior modification. For such strategies, an individual plan
for using specific or unique behavior modification strategies with a student should be developed,
as determined appropriate, using the following procedures:

1. Describe specific behavior to be modified/acquired.

2. Describe the technique(s) to be used.

3. Determine who will be responsible for administering the technique.

4. Document whether the student has a choice in the technique to be used.

5. Document that parents/guardian and the student, as appropriate, have been
informed of the technique and approve the plan.

6. Document that medical clearance has been obtained to use the technique, where
appropriate.

7. Describe the timelines established such as frequency, duration, termination, etc.
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8.

Describe how the technique will be determined to have been successful or
unsuccessful.

Legal Reference:

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

D. Removals of Students and Interviews of Students

It shall be the policy of the ESU to follow the policy of the school in which each individual
student is enrolled with respect to the removal of students and interviews of students to the extent
that such school policies are consistent with the effective operations of the ESU. In the absence
of such a school policy, or when the school policy has not been provided to the ESU, the
following procedures shall be used.

1.

Article 5

Removals of Students by Law Enforcement Officials

In dealing with law enforcement officials, ESU employees are not to obstruct
government operations or unreasonably refuse or fail to aid a peace officer, but
are also to attempt to prevent undue interference with ESU operations or
educational programming.

A peace officer may in the line of duty require a student to accompany him for
questioning or detention, either with or without an arrest warrant. A peace officer
has the lawful authority to take immediate temporary custody of children under
the age of 18 without a warrant or order of the court (1) when, in the presence of
the officer, the juvenile has violated a state law or a municipal ordinance; (2)
when a felony has been committed and the officer has reasonable grounds to
believe the juvenile committed it; (3) when such juvenile is seriously endangered
in his or her surroundings and immediate removal appears to be necessary for the
juvenile’s protection; or (4) when there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
juvenile has run away from his or her parent, guardian, or custodian. A probation
officer assigned to a student by a court also has the statutory authority to arrest a
student in certain circumstances and that power is similar to the power granted to
a peace officer by law.

If a peace officer or probation officer requests custody of a student who is at that
time under the control and jurisdiction of the ESU:

a. The student should be released after appropriate measures are taken and
documented to ensure that the officer has the authority to take the student.

b. Upon releasing the student, the school in which the student is enrolled has
a statutory responsibility to inform the student’s parent or guardian of the
removal. To assist the school in meeting this responsibility, the ESU
employee who has released the student shall contact an appropriate
administrator of the school in which the student is enrolled. The school
administrator shall be informed of any circumstances that warrant a delay
in immediately contacting the parent or guardian, such as information
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which suggests that immediate notification could interfere with the peace
officer’s performance of duties or create a dangerous situation for the
student or peace officer.

In some instances there may be orders for custody of a student served by the FBI,
a federal marshal, a postal inspector, another federal officer, state official, or
officers from outside the jurisdiction of the ESU. While these officers may have
authority to arrest and remove students, local law enforcement should be
contacted and requested to participate in or monitor the removal.

A student should not be released to a private detective or “special police officer”
who is not an officer of a Nebraska political subdivision or an officer of some
agency of the federal government without consent of the student’s parent,
guardian or custodian.

Interviews of Students by Law Enforcement Officials

Unless a student is placed under arrest, a peace officer or probation officer will
not be permitted to remove a student from the control and jurisdiction of the ESU
for questioning unless permission of the student’s parent, guardian or custodian is
obtained. Law enforcement officers should be urged to contact students outside
the instructional day and off ESU premises whenever possible. Questioning or
interview of students on ESU premises should only take place pursuant to the
following guidelines:

a. If an interview of a student is requested during school hours concerning an
ongoing investigation of a crime not related to the ESU, questioning
should not take place until the student’s parent, guardian or custodian has
been contacted, either by the ESU or by an appropriate administrator of
the school in which the student is enrolled, and permission is given for
such interview. The consent should be documented. The presence of an
ESU employee during the interview is not necessary.

b. If an investigator represents that an interview is necessary to collect
information concerning an allegation of child abuse or neglect or an
offense involving a family relation and it is clear that obtaining parental
consent for the interview would be impossible or counter-productive, the
interview may be conducted on ESU premises without such consent. In
these situations, an employee of the ESU or the school in which the
student is enrolled should be present during the interview to ensure that
the interview relates only to those matters specified by the law
enforcement official.

c. If the investigation relates to an incident which took place on ESU or
school premises or during instructional time, it is not necessary to obtain
parental consent for an interview. In these situations, an employee of the
ESU or the school in which the student is enrolled should be present

Equity and Legal Compliance
14 of 31



during the interview to ensure that the interview relates only to the
incident which took place on ESU or school premises or during
instructional time or something which is directly related thereto.

d. A probation officer assigned to a student by a court may be allowed the
opportunity, on request, to interview a student on ESU premises free from
the observation of other children or individuals. In such situations, it is
neither necessary nor desirable that an ESU employee be present during
the interview. It also is not necessary to obtain the consent of the parent,
guardian, or custodian for the interview.

Disclosure of Student Records

ESU employees shall not, in the course of dealing with a peace officer or
probation officer, disclose any confidential student records or information from
such student records other than in response to a court order or subpoena or as
otherwise authorized by state law and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act (FERPA).

Interviews of Students by Persons other than Law Enforcement Officials

Any person other than an employee or agent of the ESU or of the school in which
the student is enrolled who comes to ESU premises to interview a student or
remove a student prior to the end of the student’s instructional day must obtain
permission of the Administrator or designee.

Permission to remove is not to be granted unless authorized by the student’s
parent, guardian or custodian or a person authorized by the student’s parent,
guardian or custodian.

Permission to interview is not to be granted unless that person has a clearly valid
and proper reason and such is not disruptive to ESU operations or the student’s
educational program. Ordinarily such contacts shall be restricted to the student’s
parent, guardian or custodian or a friend of the family when an emergency or
other similar circumstance exists.

Legal Reference: § 43-248; § 43-418; § 79-294

§ 79-2,104 (student records)
20 U.S.C. 1232g (FERPA)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 7

Article 5

Student Conduct
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A. Student Conduct Rules

Students are to be held responsible for compliance with the student conduct rules of the school
district in which they are enrolled. ESU employees shall report conduct violations to the
responsible administrator of such school as appropriate for disciplinary action, subject to the
student’s IEP or 504 plan.

The Administrator or designee is authorized to establish additional conduct rules for students
while participating in ESU programs and such conduct rules, when approved by the Board, shall
have the effect of Board-approved policy.

Legal Reference:

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

B. Anti-Bullying

One of the missions of the ESU is to provide a physically safe and emotionally secure
environment for students and staff.

The administration and staff are to implement strategies and practices to reinforce and encourage
positive behaviors by students. Positive behaviors include non-violence, cooperation, teamwork,
understanding, and acceptance of others.

The administration and staff are to implement strategies and practices to identify and prevent
inappropriate behaviors by all students, including anti-bullying education for all students.
Inappropriate behaviors include bullying, intimidation, and harassment. Bullying means any
ongoing pattern of physical, verbal, or electronic abuse in areas within the control or jurisdiction
of the ESU.

Legal Reference: § 79-2,137

§§79-254 to 79-296 (Student Discipline Act)

NDE February 2003 State Board Action; Reaffirmed
December 2005

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

C. Search and Seizure

The ESU exercises exclusive control over lockers, desks and other such property that is owned
by the ESU and made available for use by students. Students should not expect privacy regarding
items placed in or on such property because ESU property is subject to search at any time by
ESU officials. Periodic, random searches of student lockers may be conducted in the discretion
of the administration.

The following rules shall apply to the search and the seizure of items in a student’s possession or
control:

I. ESU officials may conduct a search if there is a reasonable basis to believe that
the search will uncover evidence of a crime or rule violation.
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2. Illegal items or other items reasonably determined to be a threat to the safety of
others, a threat to educational purposes, or a prohibited nuisance item may be
seized by ESU officials. Any firearm shall be confiscated and delivered to law
enforcement as soon as practical.

3. Items which are used to disrupt or interfere with the educational process may be
removed from student possession.

4. The appropriate administrator of the school in which the student is enrolled is to
be notified when items are discovered that would warrant discipline of the student
under the school’s student code of conduct.

Legal Reference:

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 8 Student Health

A. Prohibition on Mandatory Medication

A student shall not be required to obtain a prescription for a controlled substance as a condition
for receiving ESU educational services, an evaluation or special education services.

Legal Reference: 20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq. 34 CFR Part 300 (Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act and regulations)
92 NAC 51 (NDE Rule 51)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

B. Dispensing Medications

The administration of medication to students is to be limited to medications that must be taken
while students are participating in ESU programs or otherwise under the control and jurisdiction
of the ESU. Adjustment of dosage intervals should be considered before medication is
administered by ESU employees.

All medications administered by ESU personnel shall be administered in accordance with the
Medication Aide Act.

I. Authorizations for Prescription Medications. Prescription medications may be
administered when the following are on file with the ESU:

a. Physician’s Authorization: A physician's signed, dated authorization including
name of the medication, dosage, administration route, time to be given and
reason student is receiving the medication.
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b. Caretaker’s Authorization: A caretaker’s signed and dated authorization or
permission to administer the medication during school. (Note: All references
to “caretaker” in this policy shall mean a parent, foster parent, family member,
or legal guardian who provides care for the student for whom medication is to
be administered. The laws include a “friend” as a caretaker, but the school
will not ordinarily recognize such an individual as a “caretaker” for the
purposes of medication administration).

c. Original Packaging: The medication is in its original packaging and is labeled
as dispensed by the prescriber or pharmacist. The label must name the student
and identify the medication, strength, time interval and route to be
administered. If needed, the physician may be contacted for clarification.

Authorizations for Non-Prescription Medications. Non-prescription medications
may be administered provided that a caretaker’s authorization is provided in the
form established by the Administrator or designee and the medication is in its
original packaging.

Renewal of Authorizations. Medication authorizations must be renewed annually
and updated immediately as changes occur.

Documentation. Accurate medication administration records are to be kept and
maintained. Documentation of each dose of medication administered shall be
made reflecting the student’s name, the name of the medication, date, time,
dosage, route, the signature and title of the person administering the medication
and any unusual observations, and any refusal by the recipient to take or receive
the medication. Medication documentation shall be kept confidential in
accordance with the policies and practices concerning student records, provided
that medication administration records shall be available to the Department of
Education and the Department of Health and Human Services Regulation and
Licensure for inspection and copying according to the Family Education Rights
and Privacy Act (FERPA) requirements. Such medication administration records
shall be maintained for not less than two years.

Storage. Medication shall be stored in a locked or otherwise secure area in
accordance with the manufacturer’s or dispensing pharmacist’s instructions or
temperature, light, humidity, or other storage instructions. Only authorized
personnel who are designated by the administration shall have access to the
medications. The school nurse shall establish procedures for monitoring the
storage and handling of medication, the medication's expiration date, and the
disposal of medication.

Receipt and Disposal of Medications. Medication shall be delivered to ESU
personnel and picked up by the parent. When medication is received, the amount
received should be documented. Medication which is either past the expiration
date or not claimed by the parent a reasonable time following the student’s
departure from the ESU program shall be destroyed. Procedures for destroying
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medication shall include witness and documentation.

Administration of Medication by ESU Personnel.

a. Administration of Medication: Administration of medication includes, but is

not limited to:

1.

ii.

iil.

Providing medications for another person according to the “five rights”
(getting the right drug to the right recipient in the right dosage by the right
route at the right time);

Recording medication provision; and

Observing, monitoring, reporting, and otherwise taking appropriate actions
regarding desired affects, side effects, interactions, and contraindications
associated with the medication.

b. Authorized ESU Personnel: Administration of medication shall only be done

by the following:

ii.

Health Care Professionals (School Nurses). This means an individual who
holds a current license from the Department of Health and Human
Services Regulation and Licensure for whom administration of medication
is included in the scope of practice. For purposes of this Policy, such
individuals are referred to as “school nurses.”

Medication Competent Staff. This means a staff member of the ESU who,
by arrangement with the school in which the student is enrolled is an
employee of the school for purposes of the medication administration laws
and who has been determined to be competent to administer medication in
accordance with the competency assessment standards established by law.
A medication competent staff member is to be subject to direction and
monitoring, which involves responsibility for observing and taking
appropriate action regarding any desired effects, side effects, interactions,
and contraindications associated with the medication. Direction and
monitoring is to be done by a recipient with capability and capacity to
make an informed decision about medications, a caretaker, or the school
nurse. Medication competent staff members are to promptly report any
medication errors or concerns to the school nurse.

c. Routes of Medication Administered by ESU Personnel:

Routine Medication via Oral, Inhalation, Topical, and Instillation Routes:

School nurses and medication competent staff may provide routine

medications (meaning the frequency of administration, amount, strength,

and method are specifically fixed) by the following routes:

a. Oral, which includes any medication given by mouth including
sublingual (placing under the tongue) and buccal (placing between the
cheek and gum) routes and oral sprays;

b. Inhalation, which includes inhalers, and nebulizers. Oxygen may be
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given by inhalation;

c. Topical application of sprays, creams, ointments, and lotions and
transdermal patches; and

d. Instillation by drops, ointments, and sprays into the eyes, ears, and
nose.

1i. Administration of Medication via Additional Routes, PRN Medication,
and Observing and Reporting: School nurses and medication competent
staff may provide medication by additional routes (“additional routes”),
provide PRN medication (PRN medication means an administration
scheme in which a medication is not routine, is taken as needed, and
requires assessment for need and effectiveness), or participate in observing
and reporting for monitoring medications only under the following
conditions:

a. In the case of a medication competent staff member, a determination
has been made by the school nurse or by the student’s physician or
duly licensed health care professional that these activities can be done
safely for the specified recipient by the medication competent staff
member and the determination is placed in writing.

b. Directions for additional routes must be for recipient specific
procedures and must be in writing.

c. Directions for PRN medication must be in writing and include
parameters for provision of PRN medication.

d. Directions for observing and reporting for monitoring medication must
be in writing and include the parameters for the observation and
reporting.

e. ESU personnel administering the medication shall comply with the
written directions.

iii. Injections: School nurses will ordinarily be responsible for medications
that must be provided or administered by injection. A medication
competent staff member will not ordinarily administer medications by
injection without specific training on injection administration. Students
may be authorized to self-administer medication as hereafter provided.

Refusal to Administer Medication: The ESU may refuse to give a medication
if after a reasonable and prudent research by a ESU or school health care
professional a decision has been made that the dosage prescribed exceeds that
which is recommended in the Physician's Desk Reference, Mosby’s Nursing
Drug Reference, the most recent edition of the Nursing Drug Handbook, or
other pharmaceutical manuals handbook; or when a drug or substance is not
currently approved by the FDA. When ESU personnel refuse to carry out a
request to administer medication, the Administrator or designee is to be
notified and efforts are to be made to work out a suitable solution (such as
changing the time of administration, the dosage, or the medication) with the
parent or guardian and the physician.
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Legal Reference: §§ 71-6718 to 71-6742; NDE Rule 59

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

C. Emergency Response to Life-Threatening Asthma or Systemic Allergic Reactions

It is the policy of ESU 17 to follow the Emergency Response to Life-Threatening Asthma or
Systemic Allergic Reactions (Emergency Protocol) and related policies of the school districts in
which the ESU provides services in the school district’s facilities.

Each employee who is or will be providing services to students in an accredited school, an
approved school, or to children in an approved early childhood program, is to be provided with

the following:

1.

Information about the existence of the Emergency Response to Life-Threatening
Asthma or Systemic Allergic Reactions (Emergency Protocol) established by the
Nebraska Department of Education and adopted by each school district.

Access to a copy of the Emergency Protocol form and either a copy of the
school’s signed Emergency Protocol or directions to obtain such from the school
administrator.

Information about the availability of a school nurse and, if one is not available,
who at the school site where services are being provided is a designated trained
non-medical staff for purposes of implementing the Emergency Protocol.

Information about the whereabouts within the school building where the
employee is providing services of the equipment and medication necessary to
implement the Emergency Protocol in the case of any student or school staff
emergency, including the location of an IM EpiPen-Jr. or adult EpiPen, or the
school official who is to be contacted to obtain such information.

Appropriate direction and instruction so that an employee who may be involved in
an Emergency Protocol response provides appropriate and accurate information to
the appropriate school official, in order that the school may maintain records of
administration of medication by school staff as required.

Inform and provide the employee of any written request from a parent or guardian
of a minor student served by the employee, directing that such minor student not
receive emergency treatment under the protocol.

Legal Reference: NDE Rule 59.006

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

D. Student Self-Management of Asthma, Anaphylaxis, and Diabetes

Students with asthma, anaphylaxis or diabetes will be permitted to self-manage such medical
conditions while participating in programs operated by the ESU when the student has a self-
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management plan established with the school district in which they are enrolled that is prepared
and signed in accordance with legal requirements.

Legal Reference: §§ 79-224 and 79-225

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

E. Emergency Medical Aid

When a student is receiving services in a program under the control or supervision of the ESU,
ESU employees are to utilize the skills within their capacity to respond to health emergencies.
Employees are to render medical aid to students in need of emergency medical services or, as
appropriate, arrange for the transportation of the student to the nearest facility where professional
medical assistance is available.

Every effort should be made by ESU 17 employees to contact the student’s parent or guardian, if
time allows for such contact under emergency circumstances; but the primary interest is the
health of the student. In the event that emergency circumstances do not allow the employee to
contact a parent or guardian prior to the rendering of medical assistance, then the employee
should contact the parent or guardian at the earliest practical time under the circumstances.

Legal Reference:

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

F. Wellness Policy

A mission of the ESU is to provide curriculum, instruction, and experiences in a health-
promoting school environment to instill habits of lifelong learning and health when providing
services to students in its own school programs, to be generally consistent with that in place in
the schools from which students served by the ESU are enrolled. Therefore, the Board adopts the
following Wellness Policy applicable to any school program in which the services are provided
by the ESU in a school-setting other than within a school district served by the ESU.

1. Goals to Promote Student Wellness
The ESU has established the following student wellness goals that are designed to
promote student wellness in a manner that the ESU determines to be appropriate:

a. Nutrition Education. To implement a curriculum that meets or exceeds the
health and nutrition education objectives established by the Nebraska
Department of Education.

b. Physical Activity. To implement a curriculum that meets or exceeds the health
and physical education objectives established by the Nebraska Department of
Education.

c. Other School Activities. To offer other suitable opportunities for students to
engage in health-promoting activities.

The Administrator or designee shall establish such further goals as are determined

Article 5 Equity and Legal Compliance
22 of 31



appropriate to meet the stated mission.

2. Nutrition Guidelines

Nutrition guidelines have been selected by the ESU for all foods available to students
during the school day with the objective of promoting student health and reducing
childhood obesity. The guidelines are as follows: (1) any school breakfast and lunch
programs offered by the ESU will meet or exceed the requirements of federal and state
law and regulatory authorities and (2) no foods in competition with the school lunch or
breakfast program shall be sold or otherwise made available to students anywhere on
ESU premises during the period of one-half hour prior to the serving period for breakfast
and lunch and lasting until one-half hour after the serving of breakfast and lunch. The
Administrator or designee shall establish such further nutrition guidelines as are
determined appropriate to meet the stated mission.

3. Assurance for Reimbursable School Meals

The ESU gives the assurance that the guidelines for reimbursable school meals shall not
be less restrictive than regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of Agriculture
pursuant to subsections (a) and (b) of section 10 of the Child Nutrition Act (42 U.S.C.
1779) and sections 9(f)(1) and 17(a) of the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch
Act (42 U.S.C. 1758()(1), 1766(a)), as those regulations and guidance apply to the ESU.

4, Plan for Measuring Implementation and Designation of Responsible Persons

The Administrator or the Administrator’s designee is charged with operational
responsibility for ensuring that the ESU meets the Wellness Policy. The Administrator or
designee shall measure implementation of the Wellness Policy by conducting periodic
reviews or receiving periodic reports.

5. Development of Policy
The ESU assures that development of the Wellness Policy involved parents, students,
representatives of the Administrator’s nutrition services department, the ESU Board,
administrators, and the public.

Legal Reference: The Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act of
2004, 42 USC 1751,

National School Lunch Program, 42 U.S.C §§1751-
1760, 1770; 7 CFR § 210

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 9 Communicable and Infectious Diseases

Procedures for Control of Communicable Diseases.

The ESU shall cooperate with county and state health departments in developing procedures for
the control of communicable disease in ESU programs and activities. Procedures shall conform
to the regulations for communicable disease control set up by the state health department. The
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Administrator or designee shall establish an exposure control plan in accordance with OSHA’s
“Occupational Exposure to Blood-Borne Pathogens” Standard.

B. Students

Article 5

Contagious and Infectious Diseases. Contagious and infectious diseases subject
to this part include those diseases regulated by the Nebraska Department of
Health and Human Services regulations pertaining to school health and
communicable disease control (173 NAC 3). A student showing any signs or
symptoms of a contagious or infectious disease will be excluded from attending
ESU schools or programs in accordance with the Contagious and Infectious
Disease Chart attached to those regulations and not be allowed to return until the
minimum isolation period has elapsed, and all signs or symptoms of illness have
disappeared in accordance with the Chart. Students with contagious or infectious
diseases or conditions other than those listed in the Chart will be subject to
exclusion until the student’s physician gives a written statement that the disease or
condition is not in a communicable stage or there is minimal risk of transmission
to others in a school or ESU program setting.

Bloodborne Pathogen Communicable Diseases. Communicable diseases subject
to this part include diseases spread via bloodborne pathogens, including Human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV) (including AIDS) and Hepatitis B (only carriers
are of concern). A student with such a disease shall not be excluded or be subject
to different treatment concerning services or participation in activities in the
absence of an individualized determination that exclusion or modifications are
appropriate because the student’s condition poses an imminent threat to the health
or the safety of others in the ESU school or program community. Such a
determination shall be made by following established policies and procedures for
students with chronic health problems or students with disabilities. Decision
makers are to consult with the student’s physician and parent or guardian; respect
the student’s and family’s privacy rights; and reassess the placement if there is a
change in the student’s need for accommodations or services.

In making such a determination, the following factors will be evaluated: (1) the
nature of the disease; (2) the age of the student; (3) the behavior of the student; (4)
the neurological development of the student; (5) the physical condition of the
student; (6) the expected type of interaction which the student will have with
other individuals in the proposed placement setting; (7) the degree to which other
individuals may be exposed to infectious organisms; (8) the hygienic practices of
the student; (9) the risk of transmission of the disease from the student to those
individuals with whom the student will interact; and (10) any other pertinent
factor reasonably related to the decision.

Reporting. Employees who become aware that a student has been diagnosed with
or is suspected of having a reportable disease shall immediately inform the
Administrator or designee, who shall notify the appropriate administrator of the
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school in which the student is enrolled and make a report to the Board of Health
where required by law.

C. Employees

1.

Contagious and Infectious Diseases. When an employee has a contagious or
infectious disease which is in a communicable stage or presents more than a
minimal risk of transmission to others, the employee should not report to work
and is expected to follow the absence reporting procedures. Employees should in
general follow the same guidelines for absence from work as a student is to follow
under the guidelines of the Contagious and Infectious Disease Chart of the
Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services regulations pertaining to
school health and communicable disease control. Prior to returning to work,
employees shall upon request submit a physician’s written statement stating that
the employee is able to return to work and does not pose a significant risk of
transmission of the disease to others.

Bloodborne Pathogen Communicable Diseases. Communicable diseases subject
to this part include diseases spread via bloodborne pathogens, including Human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV) (including AIDS) and Hepatitis B (only carriers
are of concern). An employee with a communicable disease, or an applicant for
employment, shall be employed or be continued in employment without
consideration of the communicable disease provided the employee or applicant is
able to perform the essential functions of the position with such reasonable
accommodations as may be necessary and provided the communicable disease
does not pose an imminent threat to the health or the safety of others within the
employee’s work environment. Employees who have a communicable disease are
expected to conduct themselves in such a manner as to not place others at risk
and, in the event reasonable accommodation is necessary to avoid such risk, to
make a confidential request for such accommodation.

D. General Provisions

Article 5

No Discrimination or Harassment. No employee or student shall be unlawfully
discriminated against or subjected to harassment on the basis of having a
communicable disease.

Privacy. Every employee has a duty to treat as highly confidential any knowledge
or speculation concerning the bloodborne pathogen status of a student or other
employee. Violation of medical privacy may be cause for disciplinary action
against the employee, including possible termination.

No information regarding a person’s bloodborne pathogen status will be divulged
to any individual or organization other than ESU employees or agents who have a
need to know of the circumstance, appropriate officials of the school in which the
student is enrolled, and emergency medical personnel with a need to know,
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without a court order or a signed and dated consent of the person with the
bloodborne pathogen infection (or the parent or guardian of a minor).

Records. All health records, notes, and other documents that reference an
employee’s bloodborne pathogen status or occupational exposure will be
maintained in a separate confidential medical file for the employee. Records of
occupational exposure shall be maintained for at least the duration of employment
plus 30 years in accordance with OSHA standards.

All health records, notes, and other documents that reference a student’s
bloodborne pathogen status will be maintained in a separate confidential medical
file for the student.

Infection Control. All employees are required to consistently follow infection
control guidelines. Employees are required to follow the exposure control plan of
the ESU established in accordance with OSHA’s “Occupational Exposure to
Blood-Borne Pathogens” Standard. The use of universal precautions is mandated
and work practice controls to minimize or prevent potential exposure are to be
implemented. Any incident of exposure to blood shall be reported, evaluated, and
follow-up completed and shall be shared only to the extent required to accomplish
legitimate educational goals and to comply with employees’ right to know
requirements. Equipment and supplies needed to apply the infection control
guidelines will be maintained and kept accessible.

Staff Development. The Administrator or designee will make communicable
disease and bloodborne pathogen education programs available to employees as
appropriate to convey guidance on infection control procedures and inform
employees about ESU policies.

Legal Reference: 173 NAC 3 (HHS Control of Communicable Disease regulation)

§§ 20-167 and 20-168 (HIV/AIDs statutes)

§ 79-264 (student emergency exclusion)

29 CFR 1910.1030 (OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens regulation)

ADA-42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 28 CFR §35.101 et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504--29 U.S.C. §791, et seq.; 34 CFR
§104, et seq.

Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act--§§48-1101 to 48-1126

20 U.S.C. 1232g (FERPA)

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 10

Student Fees

The ESU will not assess any fee to students in a manner inconsistent with the adopted Student
Fee Policy of the school district in which the student is enrolled (“School District”). Further, the
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ESU will not assess any fee to students in the absence of specific authority within a contract for
services between the ESU and the School District.

In the event that a student served by the ESU requires certain goods or services to be provided by
the ESU when no counterpart service is available within the School District, any fees to be
charged for any such goods or services by the ESU shall be specifically identified by the School
District and the ESU. Any fees assessed by the ESU at the direction of, or by contract with, the
School District shall be deemed a fee collected by the School District.

Legal Reference: §§ 79-2,125 to 79-2,135 (Public Elementary and
Secondary Student Fee Authorization Act)
Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

Section 11  Transportation

A. Safe Pupil Transportation Plan

This policy sets forth the ESU’s plan for providing safe transportation to students being
transported by the ESU in pupil transportation vehicles.

1. Weapons. Upon becoming aware of a weapon aboard a pupil transportation
vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of the situation if possible.
If not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.
Examples of a safe haven include, but are not limited to, any school
building site, emergency service station (law enforcement or fire
department), community service agency, etc.

b. Pull vehicle over to safe and secure area.
c. Confiscate weapon (if it doesn’t jeopardize student or driver safety).
d. Give description of weapon and participating parties to dispatch.
e. Dispatch will immediately notify appropriate law enforcement agencies
and administration.
2. Pupil behavior. Students are expected to follow student conduct rules while in a

pupil transportation vehicle. The pupil transportation driver is responsible for
controlling behavior which affects safety and for reporting rule violations to
administration. In the event a student’s behavior jeopardizes safety, the driver
will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.

b. First seek to resolve incident through discussion with the student(s)
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involved.

c. Activate emergency flashers.

d. Bring vehicle to a safe stop. Seek to resolve the incident, using physical
force only as necessary to protect students or yourself.

e. Report and document discipline problems to the Administrator on a Bus
Conduct Report/Incident Form.

3. Terrorist threats. A person commits a terroristic threat if the person threatens to
commit a crime of violence with the intent to terrorize another or with the intent
of causing evacuation of a building, place of assembly or facility of public
transportation or in reckless disregard of the risk of causing such terror or
evacuation. Upon becoming aware of a terroristic threat relating to a pupil
transportation vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.

b. Make every attempt to keep passengers calm (this may mean complying
with the terrorist).

c. Dispatch will immediately notify appropriate law enforcement agencies
and administration.

d. Driver should wait for instructions from dispatch if possible.

4.  Severe weather. Upon becoming aware of severe weather while aboard a pupil
transportation vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.

b. Return to the nearest school site if less than five minutes away and follow
the directions of the school administrator.

c. If more than five minutes away from a school site, go to the nearest school
and follow the directions of the administrator.

d. If more than five minutes away from the nearest school site or there is
immediate danger, get to the nearest basement or underground shelter with
all students.

e. If there is no shelter and there is immediate danger the driver and
passengers are to follow evacuation procedures and get everyone off the
vehicle into the nearest ditch or culvert at least 100 feet away from the
vehicle.

5. Hazardous materials. Upon becoming aware of a hazardous material aboard a
pupil transportation vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.
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Pull vehicle over to safe and secure area.

Give description of hazardous materials in question to dispatch.

d. Dispatch will immediately notify appropriate law enforcement and
administration.

e. Driver should wait for instructions from dispatch if possible.

c o

Medical emergencies. Upon becoming aware of a medical emergency aboard a
pupil transportation vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.

b. Dispatch will immediately notify appropriate medical agencies and
administration.

c. Driver should follow instructions from dispatch, ESU officials, and
parents when such information can be obtained quickly enough. If not
available, follow emergency first aid procedures.

d. Only if necessary, the driver should move passengers only enough to get
them out of danger of traffic or fire. If moved, the driver and aide are to
keep them where placed until a medical agency arrives, unless a parent has
taken charge of their child. Driver should try to keep student passengers
as calm as possible.

Procedures in the event of mechanical breakdowns of the vehicle.
Upon becoming aware of a mechanical breakdown aboard a Pupil transportation
vehicle, the driver will make every attempt to:

a. Pull vehicle over to safe and secure area if possible.

b. Radio transportation dispatch and notify them of situation if possible. If
not possible, the driver will make every attempt to telephone dispatch
from a cellular telephone or from the nearest safe haven location.

c. Activate emergency flashers and place warning flares/reflectors in
accordance with safety guidelines, if not in secure area.

d. Driver should try to keep student passengers as calm as possible.

e. Dispatch will arrange for assistance and a relief vehicle if needed.

Documentation under Safe Pupil Transportation Plan. Each pupil transportation
driver is required to complete and submit to the administration a bus conduct
report or incident report involving the pupil transportation vehicle operated by the
driver or any pupils transported in it. Documentation is to include the occurrence
of any of the following events: weapons, student behavior which affects safety,
terroristic threats, severe weather, hazardous materials, or medical emergencies.
Documentation of such events shall be completed and submitted as soon as
practicable after the incident.

Transportation of Unsafe Items. Drivers shall not permit pupil transportation
vehicles to transport any items, animals, materials, weapons or look-a-like
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weapons or equipment which in any way would endanger the lives, health or
safety of the children or other passengers and the driver. Look-a-like weapons
associated with a school-sponsored or approved activity may be transported only
with written permission of a school administrator. Any items that would break or
could produce injury if tossed about inside the pupil transportation vehicle when
involved in an accident or sudden stop shall be secured.

10. Supplemental Information. A copy of this plan shall be placed in each pupil
transportation vehicle, kept at each ESU site, and made available upon request.
Supplemental information with respect to operational and procedural guidelines
used to administer this plan can be found in the Nebraska Department of
Education Pupil Transportation Guide.

Legal Reference: §§ 79-318, 79-602, 79-607 and 79-608
NDE Rule 91
Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010

B. Safe Driving Record Standard for Drivers

Each person who drives students in a small vehicle (car or van) other than a pupil transportation
vehicle for an ESU activity and who is not required to have a permit to operate a pupil
transportation vehicle shall be precluded from driving in the event it is discovered that the person
does not have a record of satisfactory driving. For such persons, a satisfactory driving record
means a record which reflects the absence of any of the following offenses or circumstances:

1. Motor vehicle homicide;

Driving while under the influence of alcoholic liquor or drugs or refusal to submit

to a chemical test, within the immediate prior 20 years; or,

Reckless driving or willful reckless, within the immediate prior 20 years; or

4. Accumulation of 5 or more points under the motor vehicle operators’ license point
system, within the immediate prior 4 years. In the event the person has
accumulated 3 or 4 points within the immediate prior 4 years, the determination of
whether the person has a satisfactory driving record shall be made by the
Administrator or Administrator’s designee based on the nature and proximity of
the offense as it relates to safe transportation.

(98]

Each person who drives an ESU vehicle other than a pupil transportation vehicle and does not
transport students in the vehicle shall be precluded from driving in the event it is discovered that
the person does not have a record of satisfactory driving. In the event the person’s employment
position required driving vehicles as a function of the person’s employment, the employment
may be terminated in the absence of a record of satisfactory driving. For such persons, a
satisfactory driving record means a record which reflects the absence of any of the following
offenses or circumstances:

1. Motor vehicle homicide;
2 Driving while under the influence of alcoholic liquor or drugs or refusal to submit
to a chemical test, within the immediate prior 20 years; or,
3. Reckless driving or willful reckless, within the immediate prior 10 years; or
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4. Accumulation of 6 or more points under the motor vehicle operators’ license point
system, within the immediate prior 4 years. In the event the person has
accumulated 3, 4 or 5 points within the immediate prior 4 years, the determination
of whether the person has a satisfactory driving record shall be made by the
Administrator or Administrator’s designee based on the nature and proximity of
the offense as it relates to safe transportation.

The record of satisfactory driving standards shall apply to all new employees from and after
adoption of this policy. Existing employees shall be subject to the same standards, provided that
the Administrator or Administrator’s designee may determine to permit an exception based on
the existing employee’s record of satisfactory driving while employed with ESU 17 and the
nature and proximity of prior driving offenses as such offenses relate to safe transportation.

Legal Reference: NDE Rule 91

Date of Adoption: June, 8 ,2010
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